
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary    Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner       General Public: See Attached List   

Thomas Good, Commissioner          

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

              

Absent: 

 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer       

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:08 A.M.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, Commissioner Goggin and Commissioner Santana-

Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the minutes of the December 17th, 2015, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and carried unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. PRESENTATION OF DRAFT SBDD FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 BY BARRY FINK, CPA  

 

District Director Hart stated that a draft report of the SBDD Financial Statement for the 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2015 has been prepared by the District’s accounting firm, 

Margolies, Fink and Wichrowski, Certified Public Accounts (MFW).  Barry Fink, CPA, a 

partner with MFW, presented an overview of the draft report.  

 
Mr. Fink commented that there were no problems this year, and that the District had another 
clean opinion.  He said the audit went smoothly; and that it pretty much mimicked last year’s 
financials except for the change in the numbers.  There were no Management comments that 
he found necessary, and that it went expeditiously this year.  Regarding this year’s financial 
statement, it reflects the transfer of what was remaining in the S-9/S-10 fund; which was 
transferred into the general funds in the amount of $52,974.00.  Chair Hodges asked Mr. Fink 



 

 

 -2- 

 

to explain the GASB statement #54.  Mr. Fink said that was the GASB statement from a few 
years ago, where there were some verbage changes and they assigned new definitions as to the 
committed fund, restricted fund, assigned fund, etc.  
 
District Director Hart indicated that the Final Report would be presented to the Board at the 
February Board meeting.  He expressed his appreciation to Mr. Fink for all his good work on 
the financial report; and acknowledged Susan Iratzoqui for her expertise in handling the 
bookkeeping for the District.  He said that she makes Mr. Fink’s job a lot easier and every 
year there are less and less issues because of her expertise and handling of the bookkeeping 
for the District.   

 

B. RELEASE AND VACATION REQUEST OF SWMA DESIGNATION FOR 

RODRIGUEZ RESIDENCE; SUBJECT TO THE DEDICATION OF A NEW SWMA  
 

District Director Hart said that the owner of the property located at 17325 SW 63RD Manor, 

Southwest Ranches, FL 33331 is requesting that SBDD vacate the Surface Water 

Management Area (SWMA) that was previously designated and recorded under OR Book 

51266, Pages 906-909, Broward County Records.  All properties in the SW Ranches are 

required to set aside 20% of their property at elevation 5.0’ (or an equivalent storage area) as 

a SWMA. 

 

The property owner, Jose and Janine Rodriguez, will dedicate a new SWMA over the 

property to comply with the 20% SWMA requirement.  District Director Hart said that 

SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has no objections.  There are no financial impacts 

to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all other costs will be incurred by 

the property owner. 

 

The request is for SBDD to vacate and release its interest in the Surface Water Management 

Area on the property located at 17325 SW 63RD Manor, Southwest Ranches, FL 33331.  This 

request is subject to the dedication of a new Surface Water Management Area in accordance 

with SBDD Criteria. 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval for the Release and Vacation of the SWMA 

Designation for the Rodriguez residents located at 17325 SW 63RD Manor, Southwest 

Ranches, FL; subject to the dedication of a new SWMA in accordance with SBDD Criteria.  

Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-Woodall. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she did not see any plans as to what the 

homeowners were proposing to construct.  She asked District Director Hart if the District has 

any control to ensure that the homeowner does not go beyond the elevations and does not 

flood their neighbors.  District Director Hart replied that that the first thing the District 

reviews for is that the homeowners have dedicated their 20% SWMA.  If they have designated 

the 20%, the District then verifies that they do not fill the area set aside for drainage.  Then the 

District will record the paperwork with Broward County Records.  Regarding the adjacent 

properties and impacts; District Director Hart explained that this is looked at on a case-by-

case basis (by property), because SBDD does not require berms; so it is not required by code 

or criteria that a separation of water be provded between properties.  He said the District does 

encourage a unified drainage system where properties will flow to the common property line, 

out to a street or swale inlet, and into the District’s facilities.  He said that the key for drainage 

is that these properties have some sort of conveyance or connectivity to the District’s canal 



 

 

 -3- 

 

system.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked how would the District know that the homeowner has not 

gone beyond the elevations from this form.  District Director Hart said that staff performs 

reviews on properties that get filled or on vacant properties that get new homes built.  If there 

are problems, the District works with the Town of SWR to have the property owner put up a 

berm so that there are no issues, although the District does not encourage that per say.  The 

District tries to educate and make the homeowners aware of what the benefits are in having a 

unified or contiguous system.  In some cases, it may be appropriate that there is some sort of 

separation so that there is no question as to whose water is staying where, or who is impacting 

who.   

 

To answer Commissioner Mersinger’s question, District Director Hart reiterated that the 

District reviews the plans, verifies that they are not filling the area and that they are providing 

the volume of storage that is required on their property. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

C. SBDD RESOLUTION NO. 2016-01 – POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR EROSION 

PROTECTION AND LAKE BANK STABILIZATION AND REHABILITATION 

 

District Director Hart presented Resolution No. 2016-01 for the Board’s review and approval 

which will adopt proposed SBDD Policies and Guidelines for Erosion Protection and Lake 

Bank Stabilization and Rehabilitation.  The proposed Policies and Guidelines are consistent 

with SBDD’s current and past practices for dealing with erosion protection and lake bank 

stabilization/rehabilitation issues.  He said that they incorporated the changes discussed and 

requested by the Board at the last Board meeting.   

    

Approval of Resolution No. 2016-01 will establish SBDD Policies and Guidelines for 

Erosion Protection and Lake Bank Stabilization and Rehabilitation.    

 

District Director Hart requested approval of SBDD Resolution 2016-01 – Approval and 

Adoption of SBDD Policies and Guidelines for Erosion Protection and Lake Bank 

Stabilization and Rehabilitation. 

 

Commissioner Goggin made a motion for the Approval and Adoption of SBDD Policies and 

Guidelines for Erosion Protection and Lake Bank Stabilization and Rehabilitation as 

submitted.  Commssioner Santana-Woodall seconded the motion. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she wanted to ensure that the District is 

differentiating from normal erosion and emergency situations where houses are about to fall 

into a lake.  District Director Hart opined yes, and confirmed this with Attorney Bell.  Chair 

Hodges commented that this is covered under emergencies.  Chair Hodges said that one of 

the things that was discussed in great detail during Wilma was the terminology “wave 

action”, and he asked District Director if that was covered under one of the terms for “causes 

of erosion”, or should it be added.  District Director Hart replied that it can be added.  

Commissioner Good added that “wave action” can be caused by either natural elements or by 

a boat.  Commissioner Mersinger asked does that not fall under “wind speed and storm 

frequency/wave intensity”.   

 



 

 

 -4- 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously.   

   

D. AUTHORIZATION TO RE-INVEST DISTRICT FUNDS 

 

The following investment fund is scheduled to mature next two months: 

 

1. Florida Community Bank CD - $247,500  Maturity Date -  2/25/2016 

 

On January 13, 2016, the Finance and Investment Committee met to discuss the District’s 

options for re-investing the cash-on-hand that will be available upon the maturity of this CD.   

The recommendation from the Finance and Investment Committee is to re-invest these funds 

in a new 12-month CD. 

 

A 12 month cash flow analysis by SBDD staff indicates that the District will have adequate 

cash-on-hand over the next 12 months. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to re-invest the monies that will become available 

from a maturing CD investment next month by purchasing a new 12-month CD.  

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval to re-invest the monies that will become available 

from a maturing CD investment next month by purchasing a new 12-month CD as requested.  

Motion was seconded by Vice Chair Ryan. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

E. CONTRACT AWARDS  

SBDD STORMWATER CULVERT SLIP-LINING PROJECT IN SWR- District 

Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for the SBDD Stormwater Culvert Slip-

Lining Project in Southwest Ranches.   SBDD received a total of three (3) bids.  The bid 

included a base bid for one location and an alternate bid for a second location.  The bid 

documents allow the District the option of awarding the contract on a split basis.  The bids 

ranged in price from of $32,100.00 to $75,127.00.   

  

The lowest base bid and the lowest alternate bid for both culverts was submitted by 

Shenandoah General Construction Co. in the amount of $32,100.00.  SBDD has reviewed the 

bid submitted by Shenandoah General Construction Co. and has determined that the 

Contractor is qualified to perform the work and that the bid meets all requirements.  

Shenandoah General Construction Co. has performed work for the District in the past and the 

District has been satisfied with their work. 

 

District Director Hart recommended that the District award the contract for the SBDD 

Stormwater Culvert Slip-Lining Project in Southwest Ranches to Shenandoah General 

Construction Co. in the amount of $32,100.00 as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  

 

This work is covered under the General Operating Budget for 2015-2016.  Funding for the 

project will be paid from the SBDD General Operating Account.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan moved for approval to award the contract for the SBDD Stormwater Culvert 

Slip-Lining Project in Southwest Ranches Project to Shenandoah General Construction Co. 



 

 

 -5- 

 

in the not-to-exceed amount of $32,100.00.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Mersinger and it was carried unanimously. 

 

F. PRELIMINARY DESIGN FOR EXPANSION OF SBDD MAINTENANCE BUILDING 

 

District Director Hart presented a preliminary design and site plan for the expansion of the 

SBDD Maintenance Building for the Board’s review and action.  He noted that the proposed 

plan includes the following program elements: 

 

 2,858 square foot (sf) garage building expansion for storage and maintenance activities. 

 1,050 sf covered parking area with permanent roof structure for storage and protection 

of SBDD equipment. 

 Expanded building depth to accommodate the parking/storage of assembled trucks and 

boats (on trailers) to facilitate SBDD maintenance operations and improve efficiencies. 

 Expanded building height to accommodate SBDD heavy equipment for required 

maintenance work and emergency storage. 

 Building and structural design to accommodate 180 mph wind speeds. 

 Concrete roof structure. 

 Hurricane resistant garage doors and windows. 

 Overhead steel beam (continuous) to accommodate a pulley and lifting system for 

District operations and maintenance activities. 

 Utility floor sink and outdoor hose bib. 

 Solar panels to be placed on the roof top for alternate electrical service. 

 Six (6) new parking spaces plus new striping on existing asphalt area to replace lost 

parking due to the new building footprint. 

 New 20’ x 20’ enclosed dumpster pad. 

 Relocation or replacement of three (3) existing shade trees. 

 Relocation of existing water service line to serve both the existing garage building and 

expansion area. 

 Improved outdoor lighting and additional camera for safety and security. 

 Capability for the future expansion of the enclosed building area under the covered 

parking area. 

 Capability to install overhead lofts for additional storage areas. 

 

In addition, the new garage building will free up storage area in the District’s existing garage 

buildings, which can be used for maintenance and repair work; storage of vehicles and 

equipment that are currently stored outdoors; storage of supplies and replacement parts for 

District facilities; storage of District records; and the storage of new equipment, vehicles, 

trailers and boats that may be purchased in the future. 

 

It is estimated that the proposed building expansion will accommodate the needs of the 

District’s maintenance staff and operations for the next 25 – 30 years. 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD staff is recommending that the District utilize a 

design-build approach for the design, permitting and construction of the garage building 

expansion.  This recommendation is based upon the relatively simplistic design elements of 

the building.  The structural components of the building will match the District’s existing 



 

 

 -6- 

 

garage buildings; the civil design will be performed in-house by SBDD; and SBDD staff will 

perform the construction administration services during the construction.   

 

District Director Hart said that SBDD will still need an architect.  He said that with the 

design-build they would hire both a contractor and the architect on one RFQ.  There will still 

be a qualification based element to it; where they will short list based on qualifications, then 

they will award based on criteria that will be weighted with percentages.  One criteria will be 

cost; and the Contractor can work with the Architect so that the District can get a more cost 

effective price.  

 

The preliminary project schedule is as follows: 

 

 Approval by SBDD Board to proceed with the project - Jan. 2016 

 Preparation of Project Scope and Design-Build Package – Feb.–Apr. 2016  (90 days) 

 Bidding and Selection of Design-Build Team – May - June 2016 (60 days) 

 Contract Award & Notice to Proceed (NTP) –  July 2016 (30 days) 

 Design and Permitting –  July – Nov. 2016 (120 days) 

 Construction – Dec. 2016 - July 2017 (8 months) 

 

The proposed garage expansion is included in the District’s Capital Improvement Plan for 

fiscal year 2015-2016 with an estimated cost of $400,000. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to proceed with the proposed expansion of the 

SBDD garage area in accordance with the preliminary site plan and project approach outlined 

by the District Director.  Upon approval by the Board, District staff will meet with 

representatives of the Town of SW Ranches to discuss the Town’s permitting and approval 

process; and will begin to prepare bid documents for a design-build contract for the SBDD 

Garage Building Expansion Project.  District Director Hart noted that the approval of the 

design-build documents would need be presented to the SBDD Board of Commissioners and 

approved by Resolution; which he hopes to bring forward in the next two months. 

 

Vice Chair Ryan moved for approval of the preliminary design and site plan for expansion of 

SBDD maintenance building.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

Joseph Certain, Sr. Operations Manager, was asked for his input on the project.  He said that 

the building expansion is long overdue; this building was built in 1990 and SBDD has many 

more employees since then.  Right now, the District is parking things more in the parking lot 

at the maintenance department area and in the vacant field, and they have just run out of 

space over time.   Commissioner Mersinger added that they will then be able to place the 

grapple truck inside.  Mr. Certain agreed with Commissioner Mersinger and said that if a 

major hurricane comes, the grapple truck will be placed inside where it will be secure.  He 

said that it will also cut back on time; where most of the operations with trucks and boats 

going to herbicide treatments can be left hooked up each day, and the next morning the 

trucks do not have to hook and unhook; so that they can just take it on out.  Mr. Certain said 

that at this time, they are taking up two spots where in the future it will only be one spot.  It 

will open up 8 bays on that side. Vice Chair Ryan commented that equipment that is placed 

under cover would make it last much longer.  Commissioner Goggin commented that he 

heard the plan will be adding a security camera; he asked Mr. Certain if there will be enough 

security cameras in the open spaces because they will be out of sight.  Mr. Certain replied 



 

 

 -7- 

 

that right now we have three cameras and one additional camera will be placed where it will 

pick up the parking lot and the entry gate.  Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart 

if the Town of SWR has any code requirements for appearances, etc. District Director Hart 

replied yes they do.  He said that he has had a preliminary discussion with the Town and he 

was told that the expansion does not have to go through a site plan approval; and that he just 

needs to go to the zoning officer and internal review to make sure that the District is in 

compliance.  He said that before he brings this back to the Board, he will have a formal 

meeting with the Town to make sure that whatever sign-off, stamps and approvals are needed 

by the Town are done.  Vice Chair Ryan asked if they will waive the fee on the permit.  

District Director Hart said he doubts it because they have to contract outside for their 

building services.  Chair Hodges added they have to pay their outside people.     

 

Attorney Bell said that notwithstanding that District Director Hart is going to the Town of 

SWR, the SBDD Charter specifically exempts the District from having to need any permits 

from any cities or anyone else basically.  He said that issue has come up with the City of 

Pembroke Pines and Miramar in the past and, when all was said and done, they 

acknowledged that the District was not required to pull a permit; but the District has always 

gone and provided them with the proposed plans so that they have an opportunity to review 

them.  Chair Hodges said that the District should still meet code and be in compliance.  He 

asked if the District still needs to go through Broward County and if there will be traffic 

impact fees.  District Director Hart replied that he does not think so, because SBDD is not 

adding any parking.  He said that these are the things that the District will be researching 

within the next couple of months.  He said the District will make sure that whatever fees are 

required are dealt with, and that SBDD would typically need to obtain a stamp from the 

County.  Commissioner Good commented that he does not know that the District is truly 

exempt because when you are talking about land development codes, you are not exempt.  

He gave the FBI Building as an example and said they were not exempt.  He said they had to 

conform to certain requirements with the land development code.  Chair Hodges 

recommended that the District follow the rules. 

 

Commissioner Good had concerns on the method of delivery because he felt that what was 

said is a bit counter to what he is exposed to.  He said that the design-build process is a 

delivery method that is popular, but it is more popular in very complicated projects, not 

simple projects; and the reason why, is that when doing a design-build you are basically 

passing risk to the design-builder; and when you are passing risk, you would do it when it is 

a complicated project, (you don’t understand it or you don’t want to risk some of the changes 

that may come about), you will place that responsibility to the design-builder, etc.; but as was 

said, this is a very straight forward project, and typically straight forward projects are through 

a design-bid-build delivery.  He said that what design-bid-build does, is allow the owner to 

have more flexibility as that process goes along.  He said that when the District Director 

recommends design-build for this projects he is surprised.  He asked if the District Director 

can present a comparison of what design-build vs design-bid-build cost would be for this 

project.   

 

He also wanted to discuss the Request for Qualification (RFQ) process vs Request for a 

Letter of Interest.  He said that he would offer District Director Hart a consideration that he 

may be able to eliminate the RFQ process altogether; if he were willing to access other 

governmental agency’s library of services for these type of services; because he would be 

reduced to an RLI, where he would access that library for the services that are needed.  He 

would tell them what the District is interested in, and choose whoever they want; then SBDD 



 

 

 -8- 

 

would negotiate their price; at least for the design.  He said that you would get that action 

much quicker, rather than going through the RFQ process.  He said there may be an 

opportunity to short circuit that.   

 

Commissioner Good said if the District is doing this through a design-build, that he will be in 

a different place, because as he mentioned, it is totally counter to what he is exposed to.   

 

District Director Hart said that they will review and evaluate Commissioner Good’s 

consideration.  He reminded the Board that this is just an initial recommendation and is 

subject to change.  He said there is definitely an advantage to design-bid-build.  Chair 

Hodges commented that he is familiar with the design-build process; and noted there are 

reasons for government agencies to consider this approach.  One is that you can expedite the 

process if you go through design-build.  He said it is a fairly fluid process that the District 

can be heavily involved with.  Commissioner Good commented that he is not disagreeing, 

but when it comes to cost effectiveness, that is when he has issues. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked if while the District is doing this, will there be any amenities 

for the workers out back.  District Director Hart replied that although it is not on the plans, 

the District does want to make improvements to the existing building.  Commissioner 

Mersinger said she would like to see multiple discussions on this.  

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall commented that she likes that the staff has had input on how 

they want the building to function.  She said that the functionality is very important when 

they have a building like that.   Chair Hodges said that he has had a few meetings with the 

District Director and the staff, and he is impressed up to this point, about the level of input 

the District Director has coordinated through staff.   

 

Mr. Certain commented that when they began discussing this project, staff evaluated the area 

and discussed what they wanted and did not want; and went through every stage of how it 

will be built and how it will operate.  District Director Hart has had them involved in each 

step of it to see if it met with the majority of the workers. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

G. OTHER 

 

 Water Matters Day - District Director Hart said that Water Matters Day will be held on 

Saturday, March 12, 2016 at the Tree Tops Park.  He said it’s an annual event and every 

year they break the record for attendance.  He said the District has been a supporter of 

this since its inception, and they will have a table and a tent where they will be sharing 

information about the District and hand some brochures.  It is primarily geared towards 

the school kids where they get extra credit through their school, and they also have a 

plant giveaway program for families. 

                   

 FASD Legislative Meeting - This week District Director Hart was in Tallahassee where 

he attended the FASD Legislative Agenda Meeting.  He said it was very enlightening.  

He heard all about the upcoming legislative session and agenda.  He said the one bill  

that has been standing out this year and had everyone concerned is the Special District’s 

Website bill; where they are updating what Special Districts should have on their web 

page available to the public.  He said the bill focuses on Special Districts and is not 



 

 

 -9- 

 

government-wide.  He said that most people feel that this is geared towards vendors who 

are trying to contract with Special Districts.  It is very unlikely that there will be any 

more committee hearings under this current session; and that bill will not move forward 

and die.  The FASD Board also approved, if required, funding for additional lobbying 

from outside to really fight this bill.  He thinks they are getting the message out, that this 

is a vendor driven bill.  

 

 District Director Evaluation - District Director Hart expressed his gratitude to the 

Board members for their input on his evaluation.   

  
05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  
 
 Attorney Bell said that on Senate Bill 516, as indicated by District Director Hart, that it looked like 

it may be dead; he received feedback that it has been slowed down and that there was nothing 
scheduled this week, but there are many requests for exemptions to the bill.  He said that Tindle 
Hammock has been trying to get an exemption so that it would not apply to District’s less than 
1000 acres.  They are being inundated with these requests for amendments. He doesn’t know that it 
is totally 100% dead.   

   
 Attorney Bell also commented on Senate Bill 416 and said that this bill has to do with utilities; and 

if they are doing work in rights-of-ways or easements that are dedicated by a plat.  He said that 
right now there are approximately 8 or 9 exemptions for utilities; but if the utility is there lawfully, 
then they may not be required to pay for those expenses.  He said that he thinks that bill is pretty 
much dead. Nothing has been done since the 12th of this month.  Attorney Bell commented that 
there is one committee in the house and one in the senate.   

 
 Commissioner Good commented that drainage is considered a utility; and what it typically means 

is that if something is within the right-of-way then there is no need for that to happen; the problem 
is that typically there are easements that follow along right-of-way; and that he would assume that 
there are drainage easements that fall under this circumstance; and if there is a need to move the 
utility for some kind of project, would that be a requirement for the District to do as well.  Attorney 
Bell replied possibly.  

 
 Attorney Bell said that if there is going to be another easement that crosses or coincides with the 

District’s easement, that the District has priority.  He said that if there is a contractual requirement, 
that it would trump this bill.  He said he thinks the District is covered under 95% of the situations 
that may arise, and that the District would require someone else to pay for those expenses.    

 
 He thinks the District is pretty well covered on everything that needs to be done, even more than 

what is required.    
 

06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

   

   Commissioner Mersinger stated that she will be going up to Tallahassee next month and she has 

been in touch with Fred Crawford from the Florida Association of Special Districts.  He sent her 

the memo and is sending her talking points for when she goes up there.  She said that now there is 



 

 

 -10- 

 

a Companion Bill to 416 that was introduced, that was not there before, and it doesn’t seem to be 

going to a whole lot of Committees.  She also commented that the Chamber is having a contest 

called the Biggest Loser, where they can put up a team to participate and lose weight and she 

thought it would be a fun thing to do.  She said it’s for a good cause.  Chair Hodges said they look 

forward to hearing her report. 

 

   Chair Hodges was very happy to report that out the 7 reports received on the District Director’s 

annual performance review, they had six – 4.0 and one - 3.5.  He said that the Director is doing 

very well.  He reviewed each of the comments made with the Director and will work on those this 

year.  He thanked Kevin for doing an excellent job last year and looks forward to this year. 

        

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, February 25th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 9:18 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 
























































































































